
City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Councilmember Craig Pearson will be participating in the 
meeting remotely from Panama City Beach, Florida. 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Stephanie O’Banion. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Public Works Matt Bates. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Wayne Carpenter. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

3. Proclamation – National Parks and Recreation Month – July 2023

4. Recognize Manuel Zapata as a recipient of the 2023 National Recreation and Park
Association’s 30 under 30 award.



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

Consent Agenda 

Items 5-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

5. Consider the minutes of previous meetings:

A. June 27, 2023, City Council Workshop meeting.
B. June 27, 2023, City Council meeting.

6. Consider a resolution denying Oncor’s application for approval of a Distribution Cost
Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the City.

7. Consider an allocation in the FY2024 General Fund budget of $92,250 as a grant
match for four new owner-occupied replacement homes through the Texas Home
Investment Partnerships HRA Program by the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs (TDHCA) for participation in the HOME Program.

8. Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development
Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development agreement with TH Belton
Industrial QOZB I, LP for the construction of a wastewater line from Digby Drive to
IH-14.

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to take all steps necessary to support the
City of Houston in their challenge of the constitutionality of pre-emption legislation,
HB2127.

FY2024 Budget 

10. Receive a presentation on the FY2024-FY2028 Strategic Plan and invite public input
at the City Council meeting on August 22, 2023.

11. Receive a presentation on the FY2024 Proposed Annual Budget for the City of
Belton.

Miscellaneous 

12. Receive a presentation on Fire Department Training which occurred between June 5
and June 24, 2023.

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 

If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance.



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 3 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

Councilmember Craig Pearson will be participating in the 
meeting remotely from Panama City Beach, Florida. 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Stephanie O’Banion. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Public Works Matt Bates. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Wayne Carpenter. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

3. Proclamation – National Parks and Recreation Month – July 2023

The Parks and Recreation staff will be present to receive the proclamation.



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

4. Recognize Manuel Zapata as a recipient of the 2023 National Recreation and
Park Association’s 30 under 30 award.

Manuel will be present to be recognized for receipt of this prestigious award.

Consent Agenda 

Items 5-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

5. Consider the minutes of previous meetings:

A. June 27, 2023, City Council Workshop meeting.
B. June 27, 2023, City Council meeting.

Copies of the minutes are attached. Recommend approval. 

6. Consider a resolution denying Oncor’s application for approval of a
Distribution Cost Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the
City.

See Staff Report from Director of Finance Mike Rodgers and City Clerk Amy Casey.
Recommend adoption of the resolution denying Oncor’s rate increase.

7. Consider an allocation in the FY2024 General Fund budget of $92,250 as a
grant match for four new owner-occupied replacement homes through the
Texas Home Investment Partnerships HRA Program by the Texas Department
of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) for participation in the HOME
Program.

See Staff Report from Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Jo-Ell Guzman.
Recommend approval of the grant match allocation as presented.

8. Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic
Development Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development
agreement with TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP for the construction of a
wastewater line from Digby Drive to IH-14.

See Staff Report from BEDC Executive Director Cynthia Hernandez. Recommend
approval of the agreement with TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP.

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to take all steps necessary to support
the City of Houston in their challenge of the constitutionality of pre-emption
legislation, HB2127.



City Council Meeting Agenda 
July 11, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

On July 3, 2023, the City of Houston filed a lawsuit in Travis County to have H.B. 
2127, the so-called “Super Preemption” bill, declared unconstitutional. H.B. 2127, 
effective September 1, would prevent cities and counties from adopting or enforcing 
local regulations related to an activity located in a field of regulation occupied by 
state law in certain state codes. Among other things, the City of Houston argues that 
H.B. 2127 violates the home rule amendment of the Texas Constitution, is 
unconstitutionally vague, and impermissibly delegates the Texas Legislature’s 
policy-making authority to the courts. 

FY2024 Budget 

10. Receive a presentation on the FY2024-FY2028 Strategic Plan and invite public
input at the City Council meeting on August 22, 2023.

See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Public input will be requested at the
City Council meeting on August 22, 2023, to be followed by Council action to adopt
the Plan along with related budget elements on September 12, 2023.

11. Receive a presentation on the FY2024 Proposed Annual Budget for the City of
Belton.

See Staff Report from Director of Finance Mike Rodgers. No action is required of the
Council at this time.

Miscellaneous 

12. Receive a presentation on Fire Department Training which occurred between
June 5 and June 24, 2023.

See Staff Report from Fire Chief Jon Fontenot. No action is required of the Council.

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 

If interpreter services for the deaf or hearing impaired are required, please contact the City Clerk at (254) 
933-5817 at least 48 hours in advance.



WHEREAS, parks and recreation is an integral part of our wellbeing in Belton; and 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our community and 
provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and outdoor 
recreation; and 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation advocates for time spent in nature, which positively impacts 
mental health by increasing cognitive performance; alleviates illnesses such as 
depression, attention deficit disorders and Alzheimer’s; and 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation encourages physical activities by providing space for popular 
sports, hiking trails, playgrounds, water play and other City of Belton Parks and 
Rec programs designed to promote active lifestyles; and 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation increases a community’s economic prosperity through 
increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the 
attraction and retention of businesses, and reduction of crime, and; 

WHEREAS, the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and Recreation 
Month; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton recognizes the benefits derived from parks and recreation 
resources. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, DAVID K. LEIGH, Mayor of the City of Belton do hereby proclaim the 
month of July 2023, as, 

Parks and Recreation Month
in the City of Belton, Texas, and I ask that you consider (with plenty of hydration) to explore 
what the City has to offer outdoors! 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand, and have caused 
the Official Seal of the City of Belton, 
Texas, to be affixed this the 11th day of 
July, 2023. 

_______________________________ 
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Workshop Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – 4:30 P.M. 

The Belton City Council met in a workshop session in the Smith Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor David K. Leigh, Mayor Pro Tem 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Councilmembers Wayne Carpenter, Craig Pearson (telephone), 
Daniel Bucher, Stephanie O’Banion and Dave Covington. Staff present included Sam 
Listi, John Messer and Amy Casey.  

1. Call to order.

Mayor Leigh called the meeting to order at 4:41 p.m.

2. Public Comments.

There were no comments.

At 4:41 p.m., the Mayor announced the Council would go into Executive Session for the 
following items:  

3. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law,
Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance
with the authority contained in Section 551.072, Deliberations Regarding Real
Property.

4. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law,
Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance
with the authority contained in Section 551.074, Personnel Matters.

The Mayor opened the meeting in open session at 5:27 p.m. 

5. Adjourn. There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 5:27
p.m.

_____________________________ 
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – 5:30 P.M. 

The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor David K. Leigh, Mayor Pro Tem 
John R. Holmes, Sr., Councilmembers Wayne Carpenter, Craig Pearson (Zoom), Daniel 
Bucher, Stephanie O’Banion and Dave Covington. Staff present included Sam Listi, 
John Messer, Amy Casey, Gene Ellis, Mike Rodgers, Chris Brown, Matt Bates, Larry 
Berg, Paul Romer, Cynthia Hernandez, Jon Fontenot and Jo-Ell Guzman.  

The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Daniel Bucher, 
and the Pledge to the Texas Flag was led by Fire Chief Jon Fontenot. The Invocation 
was given by Mayor David K. Leigh. 

1. Call to order. Mayor Leigh called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:10)

Jill Decker, 205 Decker Road, spoke against the zoning change for 849 Elm Grove
Spur.
Josh Pearson, 6575 FM 439, spoke in favor of the zoning change for 849 Elm Grove
Spur.
Cynthia Hernandez, BEDC Director, spoke in favor of the zoning change for 849 Elm
Grove Spur.

There were no additional comments.

Consent Agenda 

Items 3-4 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. (Audio 6:40) 

3. Consider the minutes of the June 13, 2023, City Council meeting.

4. Consider a resolution authorizing publication of a Notice of Public Hearing
regarding voluntary annexation of approximately 5.78 acres, located on
Taylors Valley Road.

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, and a second by Councilmember Covington, 
the Consent Agenda, including the following captioned resolution, was approved upon a 
unanimous vote of 7-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 2  
 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-13-R 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING A DATE, TIME, AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY BY THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO PUBLISH 
NOTICE OF SUCH PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
Planning & Zoning 
 
Councilmember Pearson announced he would be abstaining from Item #5. 
 
5.   Z-23-09  ̶  Consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) and Single Family-1 

(SF-1) Residential District to Light Industrial on approximately 51.341 acres 
located at 849 Elm Grove Spur, at the southeast intersection of Elm Grove 
Spur and Capitol Way. (Audio 7:23) 
  
Planner Tina Moore presented this item.  
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Bucher, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Holmes, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a vote of 6-0-1 
(Councilmember Pearson abstaining). 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT AND SINGLE FAMILY-1 DISTRICT TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ON 
APPROXIMATELY 51.341 ACRES LOCATED 849 ELM GROVE SPUR. 

 
6.   Z-23-08  ̶  Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from 

Agricultural (A) to Planned Development – Commercial-1 (PD-C-1) District on 
approximately 15.836 acres located at 2406 Lake Road, generally located west 
of FM 2271 and east of Sparta Road to establish an RV Park. (Audio 15:45) 
 
Planner Tina Moore presented this item.  
 
Public Hearing:  
 
Zoe Grant, 510 E. Avenue J (Temple), spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Carlos Garcia, 123 Alamosa (Temple), spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Thomas Helm, 2507 Glen Ridge Court, spoke against the zoning change. 
Brenda Howard, 5613 Hamlet, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Cherie Ilse, 1605 Sandbar Circle, spoke against the zoning change. 
Kelsey Vitek, 1603 Sandbar Circle, spoke against the zoning change. 
Rachel Ramesar, 1604 Sandbar Circle, spoke against the zoning change. 
Jim Hightower, 320 N. 9th (Temple), spoke in favor of the zoning change. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 3  
 

  

Gregory Daniel, 3206 Wildcatter, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Jeff Howard, 5613 Hamlet, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Jason Williams, 6373 Eagle Point Main Street, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Tommy Gage, 501 Red River, spoke in favor of the zoning change. 
Ann Kennedy, 3202 Breakers Cove, spoke against the zoning change. 
 
Councilmember O’Banion made a motion to approve the zoning change. 
Councilmember Pearson seconded the motion which failed upon a vote of three in 
favor (O’Banion, Bucher and Pearson) and four against (Carpenter, Holmes, 
Covington, Leigh). 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-18     **FAILED** 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – COMMERCIAL-1 DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 15.84 ACRES LOCATED 2502 LAKE ROAD.  
  

7.   Z-23-11  ̶  Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from a Planned 
Development – Retail (PD-R) and Single Family-2 Residential with a 
Conservation Revitalization Overlay to an Amended Planned Development – 
Retail Zoning District for the properties located at 500 S. Main Street, 118 W. 
Avenue D, and 120 W. Avenue D for the expansion of the Mi Pueblo 
Restaurant. (Audio 1:12:40) 
 
Planner Tina Moore presented this item.  
 
Public Hearing: No one spoke for or against.  
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
Carpenter, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a unanimous vote 
of 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT – RETAIL AND SINGLE FAMILY-2 RESIDENTIAL WITH A 
CONSERVATION REVITALIZATION OVERLAY DISTRICT TO AMENDED 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – RETAIL APPROXIMATELY 0.775 ACRES 
LOCATED 500 S. MAIN STREET, 118 W. AVENUE D AND 120 W. AVENUE D. 

 
8.   Z-23-12 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Planned 

Development – Single Family-1 Residential District to Single Family-1 
Residential District on approximately 53.49 acres described as Matilda Connell 
Survey, Abstract 6 located east of N. Main Street on Mystic River Drive to allow 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 4  
 

  

for detached single-family homes. Recommend this item be postponed until 
the July 25, 2023, meeting. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Holmes made a motion to postpone Agenda Item #8 until the July 
25, 2023, City Council meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Carpenter and was approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

9. Z-23-13 – Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Heavy 
Industrial with a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an Electronic Changeable Sign 
to an Amended Heavy Industrial with a SUP for an Electronic Changeable Sign 
on approximately 0.269 acres located at 1701 E. 6th Street, at the northeast 
intersection of E. 6th Avenue and Taylors Valley Road. (Audio 1:20:03) 
 
Planner Tina Moore presented this item.  
 
Public Hearing: Mat Naegele, 3501 Canyon Heights, spoke in favor of the zoning 
change. 
 
No one else spoke for or against.  
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember O’Banion, and a second by Councilmember 
Covington, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a unanimous vote 
of 7-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL WITH A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR AN ELECTRONIC MESSAGE 
COPY SIGN TO AMENDED HEAVY INDUSTRIAL WITH A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT FOR AN ELECTRONIC MESSAGE COPY SIGN ON APPROXIMATELY 
0.269 ACRES LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF E. 6TH 
AVENUE AND TAYLORS VALLEY ROAD.  

 
Miscellaneous 
 
Councilmember Bucher left the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 
10. Receive a presentation from Raymond Suarez, Interim General Manager of the 

HOP, on the HOP’s plans for enhancing mobility in our community. (Audio 
1:31:46) 

 
Raymond Suarez, Interim General Manager of the HOP, presented this item. No 
action was required of the Council.  

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 5  
 

  

11. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance on second and final reading 
granting a franchise to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC. (Audio 2:03:52) 
 
Public Hearing: No one spoke for or against.  
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
Carpenter, the following captioned ordinance was approved upon a unanimous vote 
of 6-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
GRANTING TO ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC A 
NONEXCLUSIVE ELECTRIC POWER FRANCHISE TO USE THE PUBLIC 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR 
COMPENSATION THEREFOR, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND A 
TERM OF SAID FRANCHISE, PROVIDING FOR WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF 
THIS FRANCHISE, PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL EXISTING 
FRANCHISE ORDINANCES TO ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY 
LLC, ITS PREDECESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND FINDING THAT THE 
MEETING AT WHICH THIS ORDINANCE IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. 

  
12. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards and 

Commissions: 
 
A. Parks Board: Ted Smith, Diane Ring and Jason Wolfe 
B. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors: Stephanie O’Banion 

replacing David K. Leigh 
C. Planning and Zoning Commission: Quinton Locklin, David Jarratt, Dominica 

Garza replacing Dave Covington and Justin Ruiz replacing Zachary Krueger 
D. Belton Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors: John R. 

Holmes, Sr., replacing Joe Shepperd 
E. Subcommittees: Quality of Life, Governance, Economic Development, 

Facilities (see below). 
 
Mayor Leigh presented this item.  
 
Quality of Life:  

Committee Member Position 
Wayne Carpenter Councilmember 
Daniel Bucher Councilmember 
Matt Bates Staff 
Gene Ellis Staff – Subcommittee Chair 
Judy Garrett Staff 
Josh Pearson Board Member 
Joshua LaMotte Citizen 
Kayla Potts Citizen 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 6  
 

  

Randy Pittenger Citizen 
Dan Kirkley Citizen 

 
Governance:  

Committee Member Position 
Craig Pearson Councilmember 
Dave Covington Councilmember 
Sam Listi Staff 
Amy Casey Staff – Subcommittee Chair 
Bob van Til Staff 
John Messer Staff 
Brett Baggerly Board Member 
Alton McCallum Board Member 
Mike Ratliff Board Member 
Joshua LaMotte Citizen 
Brandon Skaggs Citizen 
Ashley Potts Citizen 
Brett Turner Citizen 
Marty Janczak Citizen 

 
Economic Development:  

Committee Member Position 
Stephanie O’Banion Councilmember 
Craig Pearson Councilmember 
John R. Holmes, Sr. Mayor Pro Tem 
Sam Listi Staff 
Mike Rodgers Staff – Subcommittee Chair 
Cynthia Hernandez Staff 
Brandon Bozon Board Member 
Elvin Juarbe Citizen 

 
Facilities:  

Committee Member Position 
Wayne Carpenter Councilmember 
John R. Holmes, Sr. Mayor Pro Tem 
Stephanie O’Banion Councilmember 
Matt Bates Staff – Subcommittee Chair 
Gene Ellis Staff 
Jon Fontenot Staff 
Mike Ratliff Board Member 
Elvin Juarbe Citizen 
Brian Johnson Citizen 

 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Holmes, and a second by Councilmember 
Covington, the appointments/reappointments were approved upon a unanimous vote 
of 6-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 27, 2023 – Page 7  
 

  

FY2024 Budget 
 
13. Receive a presentation and discuss proposed amendments to the FY2024 City 

of Belton Fee and Rate Schedule. (Audio 2:09:55) 
 

City Clerk Amy Casey presented this item.  
 
No action was required of the Council at this time. Final adoption is scheduled for 
the August 8, 2023, City Council meeting. 
 

14. Conduct a work session on FY2024 budget considerations including, but not 
limited to, the following funds:  
 
A. Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 
B. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Fund 
C. Information Technology Fund 
D. Building Maintenance Fund 
E. Belton Economic Development Corporation Fund 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented this item. No action was required of the 
Council at this time.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
David K. Leigh, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 2

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
Agenda Item #6 

Consider a resolution denying Oncor’s application for approval of a Distribution Cost 
Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the City. 

Originating Department 

Finance – Mike Rodgers, Director of Finance 
Administration – Amy Casey, City Clerk 

Summary Information 

The City is an electric utility customer of Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC (“Oncor” or 
“Company”). The Oncor Cities Steering Committee (“OCSC”) is a coalition of similarly 
situated cities served by Oncor that have joined together to efficiently and cost effectively 
review and respond to electric issues affecting rates charged in Oncor’s service area in 
matters before the Public Utility Commission (“PUC” or “Commission”) and the courts. 

On June 29, 2023, Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC (“Oncor” or “Company”) filed an 
Application to Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”) and Update its Mobile 
Generation Riders to increase distribution rates within each of the cities in its service area.  
In the filing, the Company asserts it is seeking an increase in distribution revenues of 
approximately $152.78 million. The Company is also seeking to update its Rider Mobile 
Generation and Rider Wholesale Mobile Generation to recover revenue related to mobile 
generation unit leasing and operation. The Rider would recover approximately $1.07 million. 

The resolution authorizes the City to join with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by 
Oncor (“OCSC”) to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing complies with law, and if 
lawful, to determine what further strategy, including settlement, to pursue. 

Explanation of the Resolution  

The purpose of the Resolution is to deny the DCRF application proposed by Oncor.  

Section 1 authorizes the City to participate with OCSC as a party in the Company’s DCRF 
filing, PUC Docket No. 55190. 

Section 2 authorizes the hiring of Lloyd Gosselink and consultants to review the filing, 
negotiate with the Company, and make recommendations to the City regarding reasonable 
rates. Additionally, it authorizes cities to direct any necessary administrative proceedings or 
court litigation associated with an appeal of this application filed with the PUC. 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Section 3 finds that the Company’s application is unreasonable and should be denied. 
 
Section 4 states that the Company’s current rates shall not be changed.   
 
Section 5 says the Company will reimburse Cities for their reasonable rate case expenses.  
Legal counsel and consultants approved by Cities will submit monthly invoices that will be 
forwarded to Oncor for reimbursement.   
 
Section 6 recites that the Resolution was passed at a meeting that was open to the public 
and that the consideration of the Resolution was properly noticed. 

Section 7 provides that Oncor and counsel for OCSC will be notified of the City’s action by 
sending a copy of the approved and signed Resolution to counsel. 

Fiscal Impact  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve the resolution 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
 



  

 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, FINDING THAT ONCOR 
ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC’S APPLICATION TO AMEND ITS 
DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY FACTOR AND UPDATE GENERATION RIDERS 
TO INCREASE DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; 
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF CITIES 
SERVED BY ONCOR; AUTHORIZING HIRING OF LEGAL COUNSEL; FINDING 
THAT THE CITY’S REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE 
REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS 
RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL 
COUNSEL. 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, (“City”) is an electric utility customer of 
Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, (“Oncor” or “Company”), and a regulatory 
authority with an interest in the rates and charges of Oncor; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Steering Committee of Cities Served by 
Oncor (“OCSC”), a membership of similarly situated cities served by Oncor that have 
joined together to efficiently and cost effectively review and respond to electric issues 
affecting rates charged in Oncor’s service area; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about June 29, 2023, Oncor filed with the City an Application to 

Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor and Update Mobile Generation Riders, 
PUC Docket No. 55190, seeking to increase electric distribution rates by approximately 
$152.78 million and update Oncor’s Rider Mobile Generation and Rider Wholesale 
Mobile Generation to recover $1.07 million related to mobile generation facilities; and  
 

WHEREAS, all electric utility customers residing in the City will be impacted by 
this ratemaking proceeding if it is granted; and  

 
WHEREAS, OCSC is coordinating its review of Oncor’s DCRF filing with 

designated attorneys and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s application; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, OCSC members and attorneys recommend that members deny the 

DCRF. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the City is authorized to participate with Cities in PUC Docket 

No. 55190. 
 



  

 2 

Section 2. That subject to the right to terminate employment at any time, the 
City hereby authorizes the hiring of the law firm of Lloyd Gosselink and consultants to 
negotiate with the Company, make recommendations to the City regarding reasonable 
rates, and to direct any necessary administrative proceedings or court litigation 
associated with an appeal of this application filed with the PUC.  

 
Section 3. That the rates proposed by Oncor to be recovered through its 

DCRF charged to customers located within the City limits, are hereby found to be 
unreasonable and shall be denied.   

 
Section 4. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to 

customers within the City. 
 
Section 5. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed 

in full by Oncor within 30 days of presentation of an invoice to Oncor. 
 
Section 6. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public 
notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 
Section 7. That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to J. Michael 

Sherburne, Vice President – Regulatory, Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, 1616 
Woodall Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75202; to Tab R. Urbantke, Hunton Andrews 
Kurth LLP, 1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 3700, Dallas, Texas 75202; and to Thomas L. 
Brocato, General Counsel to OCSC, at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, 816 
Congress Ave., Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 11th day of July, 2023. 

 

     _________________________________ 
     David K. Leigh, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 2

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 

Agenda Item #7 

Consider an allocation in the FY2024 General Fund budget of $92,250 as a grant match for 
four new owner-occupied replacement homes through the Texas Home Investment 
Partnerships HRA Program by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(TDHCA) for participation in the HOME Program. 

Originating Department 

Administration - Jo-Ell Guzman, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator 

Background 

The City of Belton has participated in the HOME Program since 2001, providing owner-
occupied replacement homes through the Texas Home Investment Partnerships HRA 
Program by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA).  Since the 
beginning of the HOME Program in Belton, the City has provided 32 replacement homes to 
qualified homeowners, eliminating dilapidated housing for persons of low/moderate income. 
Two additional homes are nearing completion. The City’s participation in the HOME 
Program represents an investment in owner-occupied housing that can help stabilize area 
neighborhoods.  

The cost of home replacements has increased substantially in recent years. The City is 
required to provide a 15% match, so our match has increased as well. The two homes being 
built through the HOME Program, which will be finished by the end of August 2023, are 
located at 1205 N. Beal Street and 610 E. 9th Avenue. Approximately $10,000 is available in 
the FY2023 budget, so a budget amendment may be needed to satisfy our match 
commitment. Progress pictures are attached.   

TDHCA makes funding available to cities through an open grant called a “reservation 
system,” subject to the City’s match funding, and up to five homes per year are possible. 
The City has received four additional applications from residents who live within the City 
limits of Belton to participate in the HOME Program and whose current homes are 
substandard. The City’s HOME replacement match is estimated at $22,500 per home for 
three (3) 3/2 homes and $24,750 per home for one (1) 4/2 home.  

The application addresses that have been received in the past 90 days and that are under 
consideration for the HOME Program include: 

• 608 E. 8th Avenue
• 616 E. 8th Avenue

• 506 Jackson Street
• 636 E. 9th Avenue



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

The process for approval in the HOME Program takes a minimum of six months. Funding for 
these homes, or suitable alternative locations, would fall within the FY2024 budget if 
approved.  Appropriations in the FY2024 Proposed Annual Budget would need to increase 
by $62,250 from $30,000 to $92,250.    
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount:  $92,250 
 
Budgeted:  Yes    No  Capital Project Funds 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed  
 
Funding Source(s):  General Fund 
 
Recommendation 
 
Consistent with the Strategic Plan Goal to enhance citizens’ quality of life and address 
affordable housing, recommend approval to allocate funding match for FY2024. 
 
Attachments 
Photos of Current Homes Under Construction 
TDHCA Approval Process Outline and Time 
 
 



























City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 2

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
Agenda Item #8 

Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development agreement with TH Belton Industrial 
QOZB I, LP for the construction of a wastewater line from Digby Drive to IH-14. 

Originating Department 

Belton Economic Development Corporation – Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 

Summary Information 

The Belton Economic Development Corporation has been working with TH Belton Industrial 
QOZB I, LP, the developers of the 14/35 Belton Crossing, to facilitate the development of 
four industrial buildings on 27.560 acres along IH-14 in the Belton Business Park. The 
subject property is also the location of the planned IH-14 infrastructure project funded by 
BEDC to extend wastewater from Digby Drive to IH-14 and ultimately to FM 1670. In an 
effort to not duplicate work, as the timing of the IH-14 infrastructure project is dependent 
upon easement acquisition, BEDC has requested that the developer include the wastewater 
extension as part of their site development. Costs associated with the 12” wastewater line 
from Digby Drive to IH-14, contained on the developer’s site, will be covered by BEDC 
through an Infrastructure Agreement.  

KPA estimates the project cost at $225,176. As per the terms of the Infrastructure 
Agreement, the developer has agreed to a reimbursement from BEDC of $211,197 for a 12” 
waterline extension from Digby Drive to IH-14. TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP, will 
construct the project within 12 months of the executed agreement. Upon the City of Belton’s 
inspection and approval of the wastewater line, BEDC will reimburse the developer 
$211,197 for the improvements.   

BEDC has been working with the City of Belton to extend wastewater from Digby Drive to 
FM 1670 to facilitate commercial development along IH-14. In 2018, BEDC funded the 
wastewater design and, in 2019, funding for construction was allocated. Upon easement 
acquisition, BEDC will construct the remaining wastewater improvements along with a 
waterline extension in partnership with Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation.   

Funding for the reimbursement is available in the BEDC Capital Fund as allocated for the 
IH-14 infrastructure improvements. The BEDC Board of Directors has reviewed the draft 
agreement and will consider approval of the final agreement on July 10, 2023. Pending 
Board approval, BEDC seeks the City Council’s consideration in approving the infrastructure 
agreement as presented. 



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The reimbursement for the 12” wastewater extension from Digby Drive to IH-14 is $211,197 
and will be funded by BEDC’s Capital Project Fund.      
 
Amount: $211,197 
 
Budgeted:    Yes    No 
 
Funding Source(s): BEDC Capital Fund   
   
Recommendation 
 
The BEDC Board and staff recommend Belton City Council approval authorizing the 
Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development Corporation to enter into an 
infrastructure development agreement with TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP, for the 
construction of a wastewater line from Digby Drive to IH-14. 
 
Attachments 
Infrastructure Agreement  
KPA OPC 
Project Exhibit 



1 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Infrastructure Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as 

of July 6th, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and among Belton Economic Development 

Corporation, a Texas nonprofit corporation (“BEDC”), and TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP 

(the “Developer”).  BEDC and the Developer are individually sometimes called a “Party” and are 

collectively called the “Parties.” 

Recitals 

A. The Developer is working with the City of Belton on site plan approval and permitting for

the development of 14|35 Belton Crossing on 27.560 acres between 2570 US 190 Frontage

Road and 2551 Digby Drive, Belton, Texas.  The Developer desires to construct a 12”

wastewater main as illustrated in the exhibit within the City of Belton in order to adequately

serve the proposed development.  Developer’s investment in the Infrastructure is

hereinafter called the “Project.”

B. The BEDC has designed a wastewater extension from the Belton Business Park to FM

1670 and is working with the City of Belton on easement acquisition for the utlity

improvements along IH-14.  Furthermore, BEDC has committed to funding the

construction of this project for the City of Belton, to include the Project area in order to

induce promote state and local economic development and stimulate business and

commercial activity in the City of Belton.

C. In order to facilitate the timely development of the Project in the City, while maintaining

the schedule for BEDC funded infrastructure improvements, BEDC has agreed to

reimburse the Developer for the wastewater line installation.



 

 2 

D. BEDC, after due and careful consideration, has concluded that the Project, as provided for 

herein, will benefit BEDC.  

E. This Agreement has been submitted to BEDC for consideration and review, and BEDC has 

taken all actions required to be taken prior to the execution of this Agreement to make the 

same binding upon BEDC according to the terms hereof. 

F. The Parties wish to set forth their respective rights and obligations with respect to the 

Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and agreements herein set forth, 

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the 

Parties contract and agree as follows: 

1. BEDC will reimburse Developer up to Two Hundred and Eleven Thousand, One 

Hundred and Nintey-Seven DOLLARS ($211,197), to be tendered to the Developer for 

direct third-party expenses actually incurred by the Developer for the construction of new 

and improved wastewater line.  

2. Payment will be issued upon completion of construction in accordance with the plans 

prepared by KPA and inspected and approval by the City of Belton.   

3. The Developer shall complete the construction within Twelve (12) months following the 

Effective Date of this Agreement.   

4. While not an event of default or a condition to this Agreement, BEDC requests that the 

Developer satisfies its needs for all employee positions from residents of the City of Belton, and 

purchase all materials, supplies and services in the course of making the Investment in the Project 

from merchants and businesses physically located in greater metropolitan area of the City of 

Belton. 



 

 3 

5. The Developer hereby agrees and acknowledges that if the Developer fails to fully satisfy 

the Performance Conditions as set out herein, BEDC may exercise its remedies as provided in this 

Agreement.   

6. The Developer, in accordance with Chapter 2264 of the Texas Government Code, agrees 

not to knowingly employ or contract with any undocumented workers during the Term of this 

Agreement. 

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.  The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this 

Agreement: 

a. Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 

of the Parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement.  No alteration of or 

amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed 

by all of the Parties hereto.   

b. Applicable Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the Parties 

created hereunder are performable in Bell County, Texas.  The Parties agree that 

the venue for any action arising under this Agreement shall lie exclusively in the 

state district courts of Bell County, Texas.  Each party consents and submits to 

personal jurisdiction in said venue and waives any and all right to object to the 

venue and seek transfer of venue for reasons of convenience or otherwise. 

c. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement shall become a binding obligation on the 

signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. BEDC warrants and represents 

that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of BEDC has full authority 

to execute this Agreement and bind BEDC to the same.  The Developer warrants 



 

 4 

and represents that the individual executing this Agreement on its behalf has full 

authority to execute this Agreement and bind it to the same. 

d. Severability.  In the event any provision in this Agreement shall be determined by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement 

shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its 

provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof. 

e. Notices.  All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be given in 

writing and shall be effective when actually delivered or when deposited in the 

United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom the 

notice is to be given at the addresses shown below.  Any Party may change its 

address for notices under the Agreement by giving formal written notice to the other 

Parties, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the Party’s address.  

For notice purposes, each Party agrees to keep the other informed at all times of its 

current address. The addresses of the Parties are:  

TH Belton Industrial QOZB I, LP 

7701 Lemmon Ave., Ste. 220 

Dallas, Texas 75209 

Attn: Jonathan Perlman, Jr.; 

Holt Perlman 

BEDC 

412 E. Central Avenue 

Belton, Texas 76513 

Attn: Executive Director 

 

f. Counterparts.  This Infrastructure Development Agreement may be executed in one 

or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 

shall constitute one and the same document. 

g. Personal liability of Public Officials.  To the extent permitted by State law, no 

public official or employee shall be personally responsible for any liability arising 

under or growing out of this Agreement. 



 

 5 

h. No Joint Venture; No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is acknowledged and agreed to 

by the parties hereto that this Agreement is not assignable, and that the terms hereof 

are not intended to and shall not be construed to constitute a partnership or joint 

venture between the parties.  BEDC, its officials, officers and agents, do not assume 

any responsibility or liability to any third parties in connection with the 

development of the Project. 

i. No Tax Abatements.  It is acknowledged and agreed to that the Developer will not 

request Tax Abatements from the City of Belton or Bell County for the construction 

of four spec buildings estimated at a total 344,000 sf.   

j. Attorneys' Fees. The prevailing party in any binding dispute resolution proceeding 

seeking to enforce the terms or obligations of this Agreement shall be entitled to 

receive from the non-prevailing party all of its reasonable costs and expenses 

incurred in connection with such dispute resolution procedure, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, filing fees, expert witness fees, discovery expenses, and any other 

reasonable costs incurred in prosecuting or defending such dispute, claim, or 

controversy.  

 

Executed to be effective on the date above first given:    

 

      TH BELTON INDUSTRIAL QOZB I, LP,  

      a Limited Partnership 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

  

      Printed Name: ____________________________ 

 

      Title: __________________________________ 

 

Jonathan Perlman

Manager of the General Partner



 

 6 

 

 

 

  

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION,  

a Texas nonprofit corporation 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

 Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 

 

 



Exhibit A
Contractor's Proposal and Specifications



 

 

  

EXPERIENCE A BETTER WAY TO BUILD 

3520 EXECUTIVE CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 100 |  AUSTIN, TX  78731  |  214-377-6681  |  WWW.ARCOMURRAY.COM 

 

 

July 6, 2023  

 

Cynthia Hernandez  

Belton Economic Development Corporation   

412 Central Ave, Ste. B 

Belton, TX  76513 

 

RE: Proposal for Sanitary Line Extension 

 BEDC | Belton, TX 

 AM Job #:  ATX003 

 

Dear Cynthia: 

 

We are pleased to provide you with this proposal for the sanitary line extension located off Digby Drive and U.S. Hwy 190 in 

Belton, TX. We have based our proposal on the Water and Wastewater Improvement drawings by Kasberg, Patrick and 

Associates, LP dated 06/29/2023. The following summarizes the proposed pricing and all included allowances. 

 

Cost Summary 
1. Landscaping Repairs $4,240  

2. Sanitary Line Extension $206,657  

3. Impact Fees $300  

Project Total: $211,197  

            
We hope the information and pricing we provide in this proposal will allow you to take the necessary steps to complete your 

analysis of the project. Our experience in this type of facility design and construction should assist to build your project in a 

timely and cost-effective manner. If you should have any questions or comments regarding the proposal, please do not 

hesitate to call. 

 

All the best, 

 
Paul Wagner, Principal 

 

cc: Jason McLaughlin, President   

 Jack Grove, Project Manager 



OUTLINE SPECIFICATIONS 
 

 

 

BEDC Sanitary Line Extension 

Belton, TX 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
July 6, 2023 

AM #ATX003 

 
 

  



 

PAGE 2  ATX003 | BEDC Sanitary Line Extension 

May 22, 2023 

Scope Overview: 

1. Work Summary: 

a. Includes the installation of the new 12” PVC sanitary waste line extending from Digby Drive to US-Hwy 

190 based on the Water and Wastewater Improvement drawings by Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, LP 

dated 04/25/2023, and the Geotechnical Report by Riner Engineering dated 5/08/23.  This includes all 

necessary fittings, manholes, trenching, and trench protection as required for a turnkey installation.  

b. Includes all surveying and layout for the associated scope of work.   

c. Includes landscaping repairs via Bermuda seed after the work has been completed and returned to grade.  

 

2. Included Allowance Summary: 

a.  No allowances have been included within the base scope of work.  

 

3. Design/Due Diligence and General Conditions: 

a. General Conditions:     Included 

b. General Site Requirements:    Included 

c. Civil Engineering:     By Owner 

 

4. Miscellaneous: 

a. Permit Fees     By Owner   

b. Tap and Impact Fees     Included 

c. 3rd Party Materials Testing     Not Included  

d. Geotechnical Engineering Report    Utilize Existing Report 

e. Phase 1 or Phase 2 Environmental     Utilize Existing Report 

f. Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) Study    Not Included 

g. FM Global Compliant     Not Included 

h. Builder’s Risk Insurance     Included  

 

5. Public Infrastructure  

a. Demolition:     None included 

b. Clearing and Grubbing:     Included as required  

c. Topsoil:     Assumed 2” topsoil strip across the site  

d. Erosion control:     Not included 

e. Sanitary Sewer:     12” extension from Digby Dr. to US-Hwy 

       190. 

f. Water:       N/A  

g. Fire Hydrants:     N/A  

h. Storm Sewer:     N/A 

i. Power & Telecom infrastructure:    N/A  

j. Gas infrastructure:     N/A  

k. Landscaping & Irrigation:     Seeding as required  

l. Asphalt Paving:     N/A 

m. Concrete Paving:     N/A 

n. Concrete Curbs:     N/A   

o. Striping & Signage:     N/A  

p. Sidewalks:     N/A  

q. Light Poles:     N/A  

      

6. Earthwork Assumptions: 

a. Clearing and Grubbing:     Included as required  

b. Stripping:     Assumed 2” topsoil strip across the site 

c. Erosion control:     Not included.   

d. Mass Grading:      N/A 



 

PAGE 3  ATX003 | BEDC Sanitary Line Extension 

May 22, 2023 

e. Topsoil: Respread stockpile - no import/export  

  

7. Site Utilities: 

a. Sanitary:     12” Extension  

b. Manholes:      (2) – 4’-0” Watertight Manholes, and (1) –    

zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzz4’-0” Standard manhole along US-Hwy 190 

zzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzROW.  

c. Tie-In to Existing:     Includes tying into existing manholes. 

     Located within the Digby Dr R.O.W.  

    

8. Landscaping & Irrigation: 

a. Landscaping:      Included as Allowance for each building 

b. Irrigation:      Included as Allowance for each building 

 

Items Provided by Owner, not by ARCO/Murray 

1. Acquiring and obtaining all applicable permits.  

2. Permits, Impact, & Tap fees.  

3. Operating permits including, but not limited to, business licenses, hazardous material permits, or environmental 

permits. 

4. Payment of all landscaping or site restoration bonds to a period of 12 months following completion of the project. 

5. Phase I environmental study or any hazardous materials testing. 

 

Items Not Included in ARCO/Murray’s Scope of Work 

1. Any work outside of the property line, including work shown on 03 WW to be crossing US-HWY 190.  

2. Unforeseen conditions. 

3. Performance and/or payment bonds. 

4. Contingencies or commissions. 

5. No liquidated damage provision or other penalty language are anticipated to be part of the final contract.  

6. Completion of work on overtime (in excess of 40 hours per week.) 

7. Compliance with any local affirmative action programs. 

8. Review and Permit fees are not included.  

9. Heritage tree relocation.  

10. FM global or other insurance upgrades to the building not required by code. 

11. The proposed Contract Price assumes utilization of ARCO’s standard insurance program. To the extent the 

proposed contract requires insurances in excess of the limits of this insurance program or the following items are 

not incorporated into the contract, a project specific policy will need to be implemented and additional costs will 

apply:  

a. A full mutual waiver of all consequential damages 

b. Indemnity for personal injury and property damage to the extent of losses caused by negligence of ARCO 

or its lower tiers.  

12. Survey and recording costs for any required utility, access, or public easements. 

13. Removal and/or disposal of underground or hidden obstructions, i.e. trash, toxics, rock, rubble, underground 

storage tanks, etc. 

14. Under road boring of any kind.  



Exhibit B
Engineer of Record Plans



JULY 2023

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

PREPARED BY:

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

CYNTHIA HERNANDEZ

Firm Registration No. F-510

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, B.E.D.C.

APPROVED THIS                 DAY OF __________,2023.

E C O N O M I C   D E V E L O P M E N T   C O R P O R A T I O N

CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR

DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I G
en

er
al

.d
w

g 
- C

O
VE

R

 06-29-2023



G-01
05

LOCATION MAP

0 1000 2000

SCALE IN FEET

N
O
R
T
H

INDEX OF SHEETS

G-01.
G-02.

LOCATION MAP AND INDEX

D-01.

WW-01.

GENERAL NOTES

GENERAL

WASTEWATER LINE (PLAN AND PROFILE)

D-02.
UTILITY ASSIGNMENT & EMBEDMENT NOTES

STANDARD DETAILS

O
LD

 G
O

LF
 C

O
U

R
SE

 R
DPROJECT

LOCATION

G-03.
WASTEWATER - OVERALL MAP

D-03.
D-04.
D-05.
D-06.

G-04.
GENERAL NOTES

19
0 

LN

AUCTION BARN RD

WASTEWATER LINE "A" - BEGINNING TO STATION 8+00

S 
W

H
EA

T 
R

D

PO
W

EL
L 

R
D

BRENDA LN

DIGBY DR

G-01

LOCATION MAP & INDEX
GENERAL

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I G
en

er
al

.d
w

g 
- 0

1 
G

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

WASTEWATER LINE "A" - STATION 8+00 TO ENDWW-02.

WASTEWATER - EROSION CONTROLG-05.

D-07.
D-08.
D-09.

EMBEDMENT & BACKFILL
EROSION CONTROL
MANHOLE NOTES & STANDARD
MANHOLE & SEAL BOOT
MANHOLE INVERT & SET
WATER TIGHT MANHOLE & CONE
CLEAN-OUT & SINGLE CONNECTION
SERVICE CONNECTION



G-02
05

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

2 
G

LEGEND

MILLION GALLONS PER DAY

PROPOSED CONTOURS

B. GENERAL

A. BIDDER/CONTRACTOR ELIGIBILITY

TESTING AND SUBMITTALSD.

C. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT/PROJECT COORDINATION

PROPOSED WASTEWATER MANHOLE

RIGHT-OF-WAY / PROPERTY LINE

BARBED WIRE FENCE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

TOP OF SLOPE

TOE OF SLOPE / FLOWLINE

EXISTING EDGE OF ASPHALT

TEMPORARY BENCH MARK

FIRE HYDRANT

GUY WIRE

IRON PIN FOUND

EXISTING MANHOLE

POWER POLE

STREET SIGN

WATER VALVE

EXISTING WASTEWATER LINE (TO REMAIN)

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE CABLE

FLOW LINE ELEVATION

LINEAR FEET

STATION

EXISTING GAS LINE 

PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE10" WW

POINT OF INTERSECTION

HORIZONTAL POINT OF INTERSECTION

VERTICAL POINT OF INTERSECTION

POINT ON TANGENT

EXISTING WATER LINE (TO BE ABANDONED)

SQUARE YARDS

POINT OF CURVATURE

POINT OF TANGENCY

HORIZONTAL POINT OF CURVATURE

HORIZONTAL POINT OF TANGENCY

SLOPED END TREATMENT

EXISTING WATER LINE (TO REMAIN)

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

GENERAL NOTES
GENERAL



G-03SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

3 
G

05

ENVIRONMENTALF.

H. BID SCHEDULE

PAVEMENT STRUCTURE SPECIFICATIONSG.

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SW3P)J.

K. PROJECT DOCUMENTATION

L. IRRIGATION & LANDSCAPING

M. TRAFFIC CONTROL

JOB SITE SAFETYE.

GENERAL NOTES
GENERAL

I. WASTEWATER LINE



G-04SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

4 
G

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

50 100

N O R T H

05
OVERALL MAP
WASTEWATER

PROPOSED 
WASTEWATER LINE "A"



0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

50 100

N O R T H

05
EROSION CONTROL
WASTEWATER

G-05SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

5 
G



2+32
3+00

4+00
5+00

6+00

7+00

8+00

12" WW
12" WW

12" WW
12" WW

12" WW

595

600

605

610

615

620

625

630

595

600

605

610

615

620

625

630

2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:58am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023 BEGINNING TO STATION 8+00

WW-01
WASTEWATER LINE - A 02

0 20 40

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

0

VERTICAL SCALE IN FEET

5 10

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

ST
AT

IO
N 

8+
00

PROPOSED 12" PVC
WASTEWATER LINE "A"

N O R T H

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

1 
W

W



8+00

9+00

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

12" WW

12" WW 12" WW

12" WW

595

600

605

610

615

620

625

630

595

600

605

610

615

620

625

630

8+00 9+00 10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00

PROPOSED 12" PVC
WASTEWATER LINE "A"

N OR T H

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

WW-02
02

0 20 40

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

0

VERTICAL SCALE IN FEET

5 10

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E 
ST

A
TI

O
N

 8
+0

0

STATION 8+00 TO END
WASTEWATER LINE - A

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I W
or

ki
ng

.d
w

g 
- 0

2 
W

W

Tx
D

O
T 

R
O

W



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023 UTILITY ASSIGNMENT & EMBEDMENT NOTES

D-01
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

1 
D



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023 EMBEDMENT & BACKFILL

D-02
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

2 
D



EROSION/SEDIMENTATION
AND TREE PROTECTION NOTES

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

PLAN

CROSS SECTION

TRIANGULAR FILTER DIKEROCK BERM DETAIL

SILT FENCE DETAIL

TREE PROTECTION - CHAIN LINK FENCE

CROSS SECTION

CROSS SECTION

TREE PROTECTION - WOOD SLATS

SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-03
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

3 
D

EROSION CONTROL



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-04
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

4 
D

MANHOLE NOTES & STANDARD



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-05
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

5 
D

MANHOLE & SEAL BOOT



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-06
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

6 
D

MANHOLE INVERT & SET



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-07
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

7 
D

WATER TIGHT MANHOLE & CONE



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-08
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

8 
D

CLEAN-OUT & SINGLE CONNECTION



SHEET NO.

OF

CONSULTING ENGINEERS
TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  Jun 29,  2023 - 11:59am

 JCHANDLER

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E.

2018-145

2023 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DIGBY DR TO IH-14
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 06-29-2023

D-09
DETAILS 09

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

14
5 

IH
-1

4 
SE

W
ER

 E
XT

EN
SI

O
N

\C
AD

\D
ig

by
 to

 I-
14

\1
8-

14
5D

I D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g 
- 0

9 
D

SERVICE CONNECTION



Exhibit C
Plat for 14|35 Belton Crossing





Item Estimated Unit Total Amount

No. Quantity Unit Description Price (in numerals)

$ 12,000.00               $ 12,000.00               

$ 250.00                    $ 2,750.00                 

$ 2,500.00                 $ 2,500.00                 

$ 2.00                        $ 2,212.00                 

$ 4.50                        $ 5,400.00                 

$ 3,000.00                 $ 3,000.00                 

$ 1,500.00                 $ 1,500.00                 

$ 1,000.00                 $ 1,000.00                 

$ 4.00                        $ 4,424.00                 

$ 110.00                    $ 121,660.00             

$ 7,500.00                 $ 7,500.00                 

11 1 EA Furnish and Install 4' Diameter Manhole, Complete 

For

10 1,106 LF Furnish and Install 12" Diameter PVC Wastewater 

Line, Complete For

100% LS Provide video of right-of-way pre-construction and 

post construction site conditions for the total 

project, Complete For

9 1,106 LF Provide Clean-up and Final Grading Along Final 

Pipeline Route, Complete For

6 100% LS Prepare Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, 

Including Submission to and Receiving Permits 

from Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

(TCEQ), Complete For

8

7 100% LS Provide Project Record Drawings (As Builts), 

Complete For

4 1,106 LF Implement and Follow Trench Safety Plan (Pipe), 

Complete For

5 1,200 SF Implement and Follow Trench Safety Plan 

(Manholes/Bore Pits), Complete For

2 11 STA Provide Labor, Equipment, Tools and Supervision 

to Complete Preparation of Right-of-way, Complete 

For

3 100% LS Submit Trench Safety Plan prepared and signed by 

P.E.,  in Conformance with State Law and OSHA, 

Complete For

CITY OF BELTON

IH-14 SEWER EXTENSION

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

Tradition OPC

1 100% LS Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance, not-to-exceed 

5% of the Base Bid Amount, Complete For

Page 1



Item Estimated Unit Total Amount

No. Quantity Unit Description Price (in numerals)

IH-14 SEWER EXTENSION

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

Tradition OPC

$ 9,000.00                 $ 18,000.00               

$ 2,500.00                 $ 2,500.00                 

$ 3.50                        $ 3,955.00                 

$ 45.00                      $ 2,250.00                 

$ 3.50                        $ 21,525.00               

$ 5,000.00                 $ 5,000.00                 

$ 5,000.00                 $ 5,000.00                 

$ 3,000.00                 $ 3,000.00                 

TOTAL BASE BID (ITEM 1 - 19):  $

19 100% LS Furnish All Materials, Equipment, Tools & Labor 

Necessary for Air Testing of All Proposed 

Wastewater Lines, Including Any Necessary 

Repairs, Complete For

225,176.00                                                   

17 100% LS Furnish All Materials, Equipment, Tools & Labor 

Necessary for Deflection Testing of All Proposed 

Wastewater Lines, Including Any Necessary 

Repairs, Complete For

18 100% LS Furnish All Materials, Equipment, Tools & Labor 

Necessary for Vacuum Testing of All Proposed 

Wastewater Manholes, Including Any Necessary 

Repairs, Complete For

14

2 EA Furnish and Install 4' Diameter Water-Tight 

Manhole, Complete For

1,130 LF Furnish, Install, Maintain, & Remove Silt Fence, 

Complete For

12

13 1 EA Connect to Existing Manhole, Complete For

15 50 LF Furnish, Install, Maintain, & Remove Rock Berm, 

Complete For

16 6,150 SY Furnish & Install Hydromulch with Flexible Growth 

Median, Including Fertilizing & Watering to 

Promote and Establish Growth , Complete For

Page 2



8"8"

8"

10"

12"

8"

8"

12
"PHASE I

1500 LF

8"

8"

CITY LIMITS

PHASE II-A
6500 LF

PHASE II-B
3800 LF

CITY LIMITS

P:
\D

C
O

B\
20

18
\2

01
8-

xx
x 

I-1
4 

Se
w

er
\C

AD
\E

XH
IB

IT
S\

W
W

 E
XH

IB
IT

 A
.d

w
g 

 - 
 8

.5
x1

1 
Ex

h

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

400 800
on

 Jan 25, 2019

This document is released for 
the purpose of interim review 

under the authority of

It is not to be used for 

purposes.
construction, bidding or permit 

Ginger R. Tolbert, P.E. 87067

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

EXHIBIT A

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501
Firm Registration No. F-510

PROPOSED WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

 JANUARY 2019

BELTON ECONOMIC

S 
W

HE
AT

 R
D

BO
XE

R 
RD

19
0 

LN

BRENDA LN

COUNTRY SIDE LN

OPAL LN

AI
RD

AL
E 

RD

PROJECT 
SCOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 1

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
Agenda Item #10 

Receive a presentation on the FY2024-FY2028 Strategic Plan and invite public input at the 
City Council meeting scheduled on August 22, 2023. 

Originating Department: Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 

Summary Information 

Belton’s Five Year Strategic Plan for FY 2024-2028 has been updated and is attached for 
your review and comment, with the invitation for public input on August 22nd. Following the 
Strategic Plan Retreat on April 4, 2023, a series of Major Emergent Areas of Focus were 
presented to Council on May 23rd. See p. 9-13. The principal theme for this planning period 
is Accountability. 

The seven Goal categories remain unchanged, and include: 

• Governance
• Public Safety
• Quality of Life

• Connectivity
• Economic Development

• Park/Natural Beaty
• Service Delivery

The Plan includes a Scorecard of Goals from FY 2023, and presents 23 Goals for FY 2024. 
Goal refinement for FY 2024 includes these items: 

• More graphics included throughout the Plan
• Major Emergent Areas of Focus (p. 9-13)
• Targeted Near-Term Objectives (p. 13)
• 23 Priority Goals for FY 2024 (p. 14, 15)
• Goals for FY 2024-2028 (p. 16-20)
• Council’s response on needed staffing – phased approach, with 11 FTEs included in

FY 2024
• Council direction for staff to develop Facilities recommendations
• PD, FD, PW combined as one Public Safety topic, Goal 2
• Numerous TxDOT (Connectivity – Goal 5) and Parks/Natural Beauty (Goal 6) projects

with specific, near-term schedules

Recommendation: Recommend Council input on Strategic Plan for FY 2024-2028 and invite 
public input at meeting on August 22, 2023. 

Attachments 
Draft FY 2024-2028 Strategic Plan 
Presentation  































































































FY 2024-FY 2028
Strategic Plan Update

City Council Meeting
July 11, 2023



Summary
• Belton’s Strategic Plan has been updated for the next five years.

• Began in April with Strategic Plan Retreat, input from Council 
and Department Head, and development of a series of Major 
Emergent Areas of Interest.

• The principal theme for this planning period is Accountability.



Summary (Continued)
• Plan presents a Scorecard for FY 2023 in each of the existing seven (7) 

Goal categories:

• Governance  • Economic Development
• Public Safety  • Connectivity
• Quality of Life  • Parks/Natural Beauty

      • Service Delivery

• Belton’s updated Strategic Plan reflects an achievable policy guide.

• Twenty-three (23) Goals are presented for FY 2024.



Major Emergent Areas of Focus (10)

• Shift from expansion to development of existing infrastructure/infill
• Coordination among existing Master Plans
• Focus on Downtown and Vicinity Development
• Enhanced coordination between the City and BEDC
• Increased collaboration opportunities for Council/Staff
• Visionary Council Leadership
• Infrastructure Management
• Quality of Life/Quality of Place
• Municipal Staffing Needs
• Municipal Facility Needs



Goals for FY 2024
1. Governance – Policy Emphasis

2. Public Safety –  Year for Maintenance

b Integrate Growth Management Strategy through Updated FLUM (Comp Plan), T-
Plan, and Utility Plan

d Complete use of ARPA funding, reporting, by end of FY 2024
e Develop an onboarding process, and ongoing professional development, for new 

Councilmembers

g Assess Development Review Process, especially impact of 88th Texas Legislative 
Session

h Evaluate Belton Water Rights for Sufficiency

a Ensure Strategic Needs of Police, Fire, and Public Works Departments are met – 
funding, staffing, and facilities



Goals for FY 2024
3. Quality of Life – Maintain/Enhance
 a Address Existing and Future Infrastructure and Capital Equipment Needs   
               through a Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Equipment 
               Replacement Plan

• Street Maintenance
• Water/Sewer
• Parks
• Storm Drainage
• Capital Equipment Replacement
• Facility Enhancements

4. Economic Development – Recognize Opportunities
a Reconcile Updated Plans and Implement Imagine Belton Plan
b Strengthen coordination between City/BEDC for maximum success
c Update Tourism Goals including Hotel Study



Goals for FY 2024
5. Connectivity – Coordinate Projects
       a Coordinate Transportation Projects with TxDOT, KTMPO, Federal 
          Agencies

• Loop 121 Widening – Phases 1, 2, and 3
• Renovation of Central Avenue Bridge in Yettie Polk Park
• Replacement of E. Central Avenue/Spring Street Bridge
• Replace 13th Avenue Sidewalk
• W. FM 93 widening west to Wheat Road and 6th Avenue 

Maintenance

  b Continue Planning for new north/south neighborhood circulation  
      in NW Belton, Wheat Rd. extension, between Red Rock & Sparta Rd.



Goals for FY 2024
6. Parks & Natural Beauty – Provide Enhancements

  a  Continue Enhancements to Park System including Heritage   
      Park, Standpipe Park, and consider future park in South Belton

  b  Upgrade Existing Park Facilities

  c  Cultivate Partnerships for citizen benefit

• USACE
• BISD
• UMHB
• BS&W
• Temple

• United Way
• Belton Lions Club
• Bell County
• CTCOG
• TxDOT



Goals for FY 2024
7. Service Delivery – Meet Community Needs

a  Exercise Servant Leadership in customer service delivery

b  Implement phased multi-year proposal addressing staffing 
    needs totaling 41 positions, 11 in FY 2024

c  Address Employee Compensation Comprehensively

d  Recognize value of talent attraction and employee retention

e  Maintain Partnerships that supplement staff resources



FY 2024-2028
Strategic Plan Adoption

• With valuable Strategic Plan retreat, City Goals have 
been updated for FY 2024 and for out years.

• Commitment to annual updates will keep Strategic 
Plan refreshed and relevant to changing conditions.



FY 2024-2028
Strategic Plan Adoption

• The Strategic Plan Update will be placed on City website for 
public review and comment following the July 11th meeting.

• We invite public comments at the City Council meeting on 
August 22, 2023.

• At the September 12th Council meeting, we will recommend 
adoption of an ordinance approving the Strategic Plan Update 
for FY 2024-2028 to guide the City during the next five years.



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 1

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 

Agenda Item #11 

Receive a presentation on the FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget for the City of Belton. 

Originating Department 

Finance Department – Mike Rodgers, Director of Finance  

Summary Information 

The City Manager presents the Fiscal Year 2024 Proposed Annual Budget in accordance with 
Section 8.05 of the City of Belton Home Rule Charter. The budget includes total resources of 
$47,789,630 and expenditures of $45,433,080, including transfers, planned use of fund 
balance, and the activity of the Belton Economic Development Corporation. Total resources 
increase by 11.0% over the Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget, while total expenditures grow 
by 11.2%. The proposed budget incorporates the direction that was provided by City Council 
during previous meetings.  The proposed budget may be modified prior to its adoption based 
upon the proposed tax rate and/or additional input from City Council. 

Included in the Fiscal Year 2024 Proposed Annual Budget is the FY 2024-2028 Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP). The CIP represents the City’s plan for infrastructure 
development over the next five years. It provides a framework for the recognition of capital 
obligations and the impact of capital projects on future operating budgets. A total of 
$76,435,890 of capital projects has been identified for the next five years.  

Fiscal Impact 

None 

Recommendation 

No action required 

Attachments 
Link to FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget: 
https://issuu.com/cityofbeltontexas/docs/fy_2024_proposed_budget?fr=xKAE9_xUVFUIVQwNAL7T0wVwWFFAC8S46Bm3BO7cU 

FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget – All Funds Summary 
Presentation 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fissuu.com%2Fcityofbeltontexas%2Fdocs%2Ffy_2024_proposed_budget%3Ffr%3DxKAE9_xUVFUIVQwNAL7T0wVwWFFAC8S46Bm3BO7cU&data=05%7C01%7C%7C0853143c355d44973dd508db78d969fd%7C8e5dfb6b753f4eda95fd7346e469f084%7C0%7C0%7C638236647406931479%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KbME87da3giYG2l%2FxGnXDjN3WI8f6%2F64p0qfKO%2B4ZqY%3D&reserved=0


City of Belton, Texas
Fiscal Year 2024 Proposed Annual Budget
All Funds Summary

Component Unit
General Debt Service Hotel/Motel Tax TIRZ Water & Sewer Drainage Information Building BEDC Total

Resources Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Technology Maintenance Fund All Funds
Property Taxes 8,560,840$           1,219,850$           -$  3,259,200$           -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  13,039,890$         
Sales Tax 6,440,000             - - - - - - - 3,250,170             9,690,170             
Franchise & Other Taxes 1,327,940             - 422,310 - - - - - - 1,750,250             
Permit Fees 514,770 - - - - - - - - 514,770
Court Fines & Fees 306,330 - - - - - - - - 306,330
Charges for Service 3,601,460             - - - 13,355,920           635,300 1,047,680             543,260 27,600 19,211,220           
Miscellaneous Income 492,150 31,280 22,000 18,800 406,150 12,230 2,450 4,640 277,640 1,267,340             
Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - - - 
Other Financing Sources - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Revenue before 
Transfers 21,243,490           1,251,130             444,310 3,278,000             13,762,070           647,530 1,050,130             547,900 3,555,410             45,779,970           
Transfers from Other Funds 1,744,410             - - - 265,250 - - - - 2,009,660             

Total Resources 22,987,900           1,251,130             444,310 3,278,000             14,027,320           647,530 1,050,130             547,900 3,555,410             47,789,630           

Expenditures
Personnel 13,507,300$         -$  -$  -$  2,249,400$           204,730$              306,790$              313,620$              285,390$              16,867,230$         
Supplies 721,180 - 100 - 169,290 39,130 29,800 43,860 5,170 1,008,530             
Maintenance 1,499,090             - - - 206,550 38,000 443,940 75,000 87,180 2,349,760             
Services 5,397,960             - 62,800 40,000 781,220 41,490 98,980 11,080 205,610 6,639,140             
Other Expenses 257,240 - 144,500 150,000 25,000 - - - - 576,740
Water Purchases - - - - 1,911,200             - - - - 1,911,200             
Sewage Treatment - - - - 939,420 - - - - 939,420
Debt Service - 1,205,260 - - 1,955,340             25,120 - - - 3,185,720             
Capital Outlay 45,000 - 100,000 - 577,500 - 56,400 - 50,000 828,900

Total Expenditures before 
Transfers 21,427,770           1,205,260             307,400 190,000 8,814,920             348,470 935,910 443,560 633,350 34,306,640           
Transfers to Other Funds 1,501,430             - 54,950 2,830,950             5,077,180             299,060 - 8,670 1,354,200             11,126,440           

Total Expenditures 22,929,200           1,205,260             362,350 3,020,950             13,892,100           647,530 935,910 452,230 1,987,550             45,433,080           

Resources Over / (Under) 
Expenditures 58,700$ 45,870$ 81,960$ 257,050$              135,220$              -$  114,220$              95,670$ 1,567,860$           2,356,550$           

Notes: Capital project funds are excluded from presentation because they are not 
part of the annual appropriations process.  Appropriations for capital projects
are made on a project basis and carry over until the project is completed.

Special Revenue Funds Enterprise Funds Internal Service Funds



FY 2024
Proposed Annual Budget

PRESENTED BY:
MICHAEL RODGERS, CPA
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

1



Changes Made After 
The Budget Workshops

 Property tax revenue increased by $9,950 in the 
General Fund and $310 in the Debt Service Fund 
due to the no-new-revenue tax rate calculation

 General Fund revenues and City Council division 
expenditures increased by $15,000 after moving 
visitor center contributions into the General Fund

 The appropriation in the City Manager’s budget 
for discretionary merit increases decreased from 
$97,330 to $50,000 as directed by Council

2



Changes Made After 
The Budget Workshops

 As City Council requested, two additional 
firefighters were added to the Fire Department 
budget at a cost of $162,720

 Capital outlay in the Parks-Facilities Division 
increased by $45,000 to acquire a vehicle for 
the new Maintenance Technician I position

3



FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget
Overview

 Eleven positions are added to the General Fund, 
including three Police Officers, one Deputy Fire 
Marshal, and three Firefighters

 Pay adjustments of up to 5% merit for non-civil 
service and 4.5% for civil service employees

 Annual street maintenance of $1,000,000
 Property tax rate reflects a no-new-revenue rate 

of $0.5422, while the voter-approval rate could 
be closer to $0.5977

4



FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget
Overview

 Water & Sewer Fund revenues increase due to a 
growing customer count and rate increases for 
sewer service only

 There is a significant cash investment in the 
wastewater treatment plant expansion and 
water meter replacement projects

 No increase is planned for the drainage fee as 
expenses for projects and storm drainage 
education remain relatively stable

5



FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget
Overview

 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund spending increases for 
marketing and events

 TIRZ and BEDC contribute a total of $4,160,200 
towards infrastructure projects

 Information technology and building 
maintenance expenditures remain stable

6



Budget Comparison
All Funds

FY 2023
Adopted 
Budget

FY 2024
Proposed
Budget

$
Change

%
Change

Revenues $43,046,420 $47,789,630 $4,743,210 11.0%
Expenditures $40,867,350 $45,433,080 $4,565,730 11.2%

7



General Fund

General Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Property Taxes $7,977,140 $7,750,273 $8,560,840
Sales Taxes 6,113,840 6,133,347 6,440,000
Franchise & Other Taxes 1,255,780 1,348,737 1,327,940
Permits & License Fees 474,840 463,623 514,770
Court Fines & Fees 276,290 331,142 306,330
Charges for Service 2,823,560 3,393,723 3,601,460
Miscellaneous Income 122,940 599,320 492,150
Transfers 2,243,030 2,243,030 1,744,410
Total Revenues $21,287,420 $22,263,195 $22,987,900

8



General Fund

General Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $12,114,400 $12,116,255 $13,507,300
Supplies 633,310 636,168 721,180
Maintenance 1,400,140 1,444,228 1,499,090
Services 4,894,990 4,826,604 5,397,960
Other Expenses 209,620 212,000 257,240
Capital Outlay 145,000 140,805 45,000
Transfers 1,386,560 1,366,560 1,501,430
Total Expenditures $20,784,020 $20,742,620 $22,929,200

9



Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Property Taxes $1,209,320 $1,173,383 $1,219,850
Miscellaneous Income 830 39,100 31,280
Total Revenues $1,210,150 $1,212,483 $1,251,130

Debt Service Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Debt Service $1,196,380 $1,196,280 $1,205,260
Total Expenditures $1,196,380 $1,196,280 $1,205,260

10



Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Franchise & Other Taxes $288,100 $356,018 $422,310
Miscellaneous Income 500 27,500 22,000
Total Revenues $288,600 $383,518 $444,310

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Supplies $100 $50 $100
Services 28,170 45,200 62,800
Other Expenses 104,500 92,500 144,500
Capital Outlay 0 0 100,000
Transfers 35,410 35,410 54,950
Total Expenditures $168,180 $173,160 $362,350

11



TIRZ Fund

TIRZ Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Property Taxes $2,827,490 $2,728,768 $3,259,200
Miscellaneous Income 700 23,500 18,800
Total Revenues $2,828,190 $2,751,609 $3,278,000

TIRZ Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Services $50,000 $31,500 $40,000
Other Expenses 385,800 365,480 150,000
Transfers 2,235,410 2,235,410 2,830,950
Total Expenditures $2,671,210 $2,632,390 $3,020,950

12



Water & Sewer Fund

Water & Sewer Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Charges for Service $11,360,020 $11,920,525 $13,355,920
Miscellaneous Income 130,610 686,325 406,150
Transfers 286,880 286,880 265,250
Total Revenues $11,777,510 $12,893,730 $14,027,320

13



Water & Sewer Fund

Water & Sewer Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $1,974,120 $1,828,999 $2,249,400
Supplies 163,700 152,940 169,290
Maintenance 234,050 218,400 206,550
Services 858,590 920,976 781,220
Other Expenses 50,000 26,000 25,000
Water Purchases 1,637,480 1,920,790 1,911,200
Sewage Treatment 878,520 874,500 939,420
Debt Service 1,954,450 1,956,757 1,955,340
Capital Outlay 200,000 288,150 577,500
Transfers 4,186,370 4,396,370 5,077,180
Total Expenditures $12,137,280 $12,583,882 $13,892,100

14



Drainage Fund
Drainage Fund

Revenues
FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Charges for Service $579,000 $605,057 $635,300
Miscellaneous Income 600 15,290 12,230
Transfers 2,500 2,500 0
Total Revenues $582,100 $622,847 $647,530

Drainage Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $201,880 $199,620 $204,730
Supplies 17,120 20,760 39,130
Maintenance 54,360 37,500 38,000
Services 37,560 27,140 41,490
Debt Service 25,130 25,007 25,120
Transfers 246,050 246,050 299,060
Total Expenditures $582,100 $556,077 $647,530

15



Information Technology Fund
Info Tech Fund

Revenues
FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Charges for Service $1,100,610 $1,100,610 $1,047,680
Miscellaneous Income 100 3,060 2,450
Transfers 3,130 3,130 0
Total Revenues $1,103,840 $1,106,800 $1,050,130

Info Tech Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $306,640 $291,548 $306,790
Supplies 13,170 23,480 29,800
Maintenance 436,750 392,500 443,940
Services 88,500 85,450 98,980
Capital Outlay 121,000 121,000 56,400
Total Expenditures $966,060 $913,978 $935,910

16



Building Maintenance Fund
Building Maintenance Fund

Revenues
FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Charges for Service $491,280 $491,280 $543,260
Miscellaneous Income 100 5,800 4,640
Transfers 3,210 3,210 0
Total Revenues $494,590 $500,290 $547,900

Building Maintenance Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $304,830 $292,690 $313,620
Supplies 39,000 38,010 43,860
Maintenance 60,110 82,700 75,000
Services 9,620 9,318 11,080
Transfers 8,460 8,460 8,670
Total Expenditures $422,020 $431,178 $452,230

17



BEDC Fund
BEDC Fund
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Sales Taxes $3,056,460 $3,095,400 $3,250,170
Charges for Service 27,600 27,600 27,600
Miscellaneous Income 30,190 1,548,900 277,640
Total Revenues $3,114,250 $4,671,900 $3,555,410

BEDC Fund
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $278,430 $277,078 $285,390
Supplies 5,170 4,100 5,170
Maintenance 86,740 37,250 87,180
Services 219,760 182,084 205,610
Capital Outlay 50,000 10,100 50,000
Transfers 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,354,200
Total Expenditures $1,940,100 $1,810,612 $1,987,550

18



Total Revenue for All Funds

Total
Revenues

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Property Taxes $12,013,950 $11,651,765 $13,039,890
Sales Taxes 9,170,300 9,228,747 9,690,170
Franchise & Other Taxes 1,543,880 1,704,755 1,750,250
Permit Fees 474,840 463,623 514,770
Court Fines & Fees 276,290 331,142 306,330
Charges for Service 16,382,070 17,538,795 19,211,220
Miscellaneous Income 286,570 2,954,657 1,267,340
Transfers 2,538,750 2,538,750 2,009,660
Total Revenues $42,686,650 $46,412,234 $47,789,630

19



Total Expenditures for All Funds

Total
Expenditures

FY 2023
Budget

FY 2023
Estimate

FY 2024
Budget

Personnel $15,180,300 $15,006,190 $16,867,230
Supplies 871,570 875,508 1,008,530
Maintenance 2,272,150 2,212,578 2,349,760
Services 6,187,190 6,128,272 6,639,140
Other Expenses 484,120 430,500 576,740
Water Purchases 1,637,480 1,920,790 1,911,200
Sewage Treatment 878,520 874,500 939,420
Debt Service 3,441,760 3,443,524 3,185,720
Capital Outlay 516,000 560,055 828,900
Transfers 9,398,260 9,588,260 11,126,440
Total Expenditures $40,867,350 $41,040,177 $45,433,080

20



Other Changes May Be Made
Prior To Adoption

 Property tax revenue could change if certified 
values vary significantly from projected and/or a 
different tax rate is proposed by City Council

 TMRS contribution rate rises from 10.51% to 
11.04%, increasing costs by $49,560

 Workers compensation and general insurance 
costs increase by $26,650 to $536,930

21



Other Changes May Be Made
Prior To Adoption

 Contributions to The HOP increase from $30,000 
to $55,500

 Civil service pay scales increase from 2% to 3%, 
adding $70,000 to personnel costs

 Drainage Fund expenses increase to include
 $25,000 Drainage fee study
 $35,000 Additional detention pond maintenance
 $50,000 Cross-access near Pop Shelf

22



Other Changes May Be Made
Prior To Adoption

 HOME grant contribution increases by $62,250 to 
$92,250

 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund expenditure modifications 
include
 A reduction of $100,000 after removing the proposed 

stage purchase
 An increase of $2,000 to raise the contribution to the 

Bell County Museum to $10,000

23



Upcoming Budget Calendar
Assuming a Tax Rate Below the 
Voter-Approval Rate 

Date Action
July 11 Present the FY 2024 Proposed Annual Budget and Strategic Plan
July 24 Bell CAD delivers certified tax roll

Aug 8
Propose a property tax rate for tax year 2023/fiscal year 2024
Set date for public hearing on budget
Set date for public hearing on tax rate

Aug 22 Public hearing on budget
Public hearing on Strategic Plan

Sep 12
Public hearing on tax rate
Adopt Strategic Plan, FY 2024 budget, fee schedule and property 
tax rate

24



Questions/Comments?

25



City Council Agenda Item 
July 11, 2023 

Page 1 of 1

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
Agenda Item #12 

Receive a presentation on Fire Department Training which occurred between June 5 and 
June 24, 2023. 

Originating Department 

Fire Department – Jon Fontenot, Fire Chief 

Background 

The purpose of this presentation is to provide a summary of the Belton Fire Department's 
recent training conducted at an acquired structure on the University of Mary Hardin-Baylor 
(UMHB) campus. This training initiative aimed to enhance the skills and preparedness of our 
firefighters while also fostering collaboration with the educational institution. This 
presentation will highlight the benefits derived from this training exercise. 

The Belton Fire Department's recent training at the acquired structure on the UMHB campus 
has proven highly beneficial in multiple aspects. Due to the collaboration with UMHB, the 
fire department was able to provide a realistic training environment, skill development, 
teamwork and communication enhancement, and risk reduction efforts. This highly 
beneficial training has collectively improved our department's preparedness and ability to 
respond effectively to emergencies. We express our gratitude to UMHB for their support and 
look forward to continuing this partnership in the future. 

Fiscal Impact 

No increase in the operational budget. 

Amount: $200 in fog fluid, $20 tarp, No Overtime used 

Budgeted:   Yes    No  Capital Project Funds 

If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed    

Funding Source(s):  General fund 

Recommendation 

N/A 

Attachments 
BFD PowerPoint presentation on UMHB Training 



ACQUIRED STRUCTURE 
FIRE TRAINING
UMHB – Old Peacock Building
Tyson Road



INTRODUCTION

Thanks to UMHB, BFD and BPD were able to provide training to its 
crews which involved conducting fire training exercises in a real-life 

structure.
Fire Training - Everyday between June 5th through June 24th

Police Training – June 26th – 30th
Average High Temp – 101.4



REALISTIC ENVIRONMENT

This Acquired Structure Fire 
Training provided an authentic and 
realistic environment for 
firefighters to simulate real-life 
scenarios.

Firefighters experienced the 
challenges of navigating through 
smoke-filled rooms, confined 
spaces, and various types of 
structures.

This training enhanced their ability 
to make quick decisions and adapt 
to unpredictable conditions.



FIRE 
TRAINING 
TOPICS AT 

UMHB 
STRUCTURE:

•Non-Emergent Operations
•Incident Command Systems
•Tactical Considerations
•Search and Rescue
•Evacuations and Removal Techniques
•Self Rescue - Mayday
•Various Ventilation Procedures
•Forcible Entry
•Fire Behavior
•Fire Hose Deployment and Movement
•Fire Hose Loads
•Fire Ground Overhaul
•8 hours of Full-Scale Exercises



PRACTICAL SKILL DEVELOPMENT
•  This Training allowed BFD firefighters to 
practice and refine their skills in a controlled 
setting.

• By repeatedly performing these tasks in 
realistic environments, our firefighters have 
become more proficient and confident in their 
abilities.



TEAM 
COLLABORATION
• Training promotes teamwork 
and collaboration among 
firefighters.

• Working together in complex 
scenarios fosters communication, 
coordination, and trust among 
team members.

• Firefighters learned to rely on 
each other's expertise and work 
cohesively to overcome 
challenges, leading to more 
effective and efficient emergency 
responses.



RISK MANAGEMENT

This training enhanced 
situational awareness and 
decision-making abilities, 
ensuring the safety of both 
firefighters and the public.

They identified potential 
hazards, practice risk 
assessment, and developed 
strategies to mitigate risks.

Allowed firefighters to 
understand and manage 
risks associated with 
firefighting operations.



CONFIDENCE AND RESILIENCE
- Training helped build confidence and resilience in firefighters.
- By facing realistic fire scenarios, they develop the mental fortitude and self-assurance necessary to 
handle high-pressure situations.
- This training instills a sense of preparedness, allowing firefighters to respond effectively and 
efficiently when facing real emergencies.



ENHANCED EFFECTIVENESS
- Acquired Structure Fire Training 
ultimately leads to enhanced 
effectiveness in firefighting 
operations.
- Firefighters who have undergone 
this training are better equipped to 
handle emergencies, resulting in 
faster and more successful fire 
suppression and rescue missions.
- The skills and experiences gained 
through Acquired Structure Fire 
Training contribute to saving lives 
and minimizing property damage.



POLICE AND SWAT TRAINING



CONCLUSION

- Acquired Structure Fire 
Training offers numerous 
benefits for firefighters and 
emergency response teams.
- It provides a realistic 
environment, enhances 
practical skills, promotes 
team collaboration, improves 
risk management, and builds 
confidence and resilience.
- By investing in this training, 
we ensure that our 
firefighters are prepared to 
protect lives and property 
effectively.



QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSIONS


	Agenda - 071123
	City Manager's Memo - 071123
	#3 - PROC2310 - Parks and Rec Month
	#5A - Minutes - 062723 - Workshop
	#5B - Minutes - 062723
	#6 - Staff Report  - Deny Oncor DCRF Request
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - HOME Program Match FY2024 (002)
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Infrastructure Agreement TH Belton Industrial
	#8 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - FY 2024-2028 Strategic Plan
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Proposed FY2024 Budget Presentation
	#11 - Attachments

	#12 - Staff Report - Fire Training at UMHB
	#12 - Attachments




